
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Friday, 24th November, 2017, 10.00 am - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, N22 8LE 
 
Members: Councillor Claire Kober – Leader of the Council 
 
Quorum: 1 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Leader/Cabinet Member will advise of any items they have decided to 
take as urgent business.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 



 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

4. HORNSEY TOWN HALL (HTH) - AGREEMENT TO CONTRIBUTE THE 
COUNCIL'S CAPITAL RECEIPT TOWARDS AFFORDABLE HOUSING  
(PAGES 1 - 6) 
 

5. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
As per item 2. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the reminder of the meeting as 
the items contained exempt information, as defined under Paragraph 3 or 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

7. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS   
 
As per item 2. 
 
 

 
Ayshe Simsek 
Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2957 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Thursday, 16 November 2017 
 



Report for:  Leader Signing 24 November 2017 
 
  
 
Title: Hornsey Town Hall (HTH) – Agreement to Contribute the 

Council’s Capital Receipt Towards Affordable Housing 
 
Report  
authorised by:  Lyn Garner, Strategic Director Regeneration, Planning & 

Development 
 
Lead Officer: Saheeda Bowmer, Senior Project Manager 
 
Ward(s) affected: Crouch End Hornsey, Highgate, Muswell Hill, Fortis Green and 

Alexandra 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 In June 2015 the Council‟s Cabinet agreed an OJEU compliant competitive tendering 

process for the Hornsey Town Hall site (“Site”), in order to secure a long term partner 
to maintain and operate the Hornsey Town Hall building and redevelop part of the 
Site.   
 

1.2 This tendering process concluded in Summer 2016 and on 18th October 2016 the 
Council‟s Cabinet approved Far East Consortium International Ltd (FEC) as the 
preferred bidder.  On 8 February 2017 the Council entered into a Development and 
Lease Agreement with FEC and the Council is expected to receive £3.5m in land 
premium for the Site.  FEC has submitted a planning application for the scheme and 
is due to go before the Planning Sub-Committee on 11th December 2017.   

 
1.3 FEC‟s planning proposal currently includes 11 affordable housing units and the 

outcome of recent viability discussions has confirmed the developer will be funding 
these units. There is now an opportunity for the Council to invest its £3.5m capital 
receipt in more affordable housing in wards in the west of the borough, such as 
Crouch End, Hornsey, Highgate, Muswell Hill, Fortis Green and Alexandra and this 
additional £3.5m is likely to achieve at least another 15 affordable housing units. 

 
1.4 This report seeks authority to use up to £3.5m of the Council‟s land receipt from the 

Site to fund affordable housing in this area, which will boost the affordable provision 
linked to this project.   
 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
 

 
2.1 The complexity and expense of restoring Hornsey Town Hall has meant that securing 

affordable housing on the site has not been a key driver of our ambitions for the 
building. However, as a council, we are committed to creating as much affordable 
housing as possible in Haringey. We are proud that almost three quarters of all new 
homes built on major developments in the borough during the past five years are 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



affordable, and we will always explore every option for maximising affordable housing 
wherever possible.  

 
2.2 We have been in robust negotiations with preferred bidder FEC and welcome the fact 

that their planning application for the site was recently amended to show 11 
affordable homes on the Hornsey Town Hall site and that after robust discussions 
FEC will fund these affordable homes.  There is an opportunity for the Council to use 
its land receipt to deliver more affordable homes in the west of the borough, which 
when added to the on-site homes is likely to create more than 25 new affordable 
homes in this area.   

 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1 The Leader is asked to: 
 
3.1.1 Agree that up to £3.5m, which is the total capital receipt the Council is due to 

receive for the long lease of the Site, be used to fund affordable housing in 

wards in the west of the borough, such as Crouch End, Hornsey, Highgate, 

Muswell Hill, Fortis Green and Alexandra. 

3.1.2 Give delegated authority to the Strategic Director of Regeneration, Planning 

and Development in consultation with the Section 151 Officer to decide the 

final amount to be spent, the number and type of affordable housing to be 

provided.  

 
4. Reasons for Decision  

 
4.1 Hornsey Town Hall is an iconic building right at the heart of Crouch End which must 

be restored and preserved for future generations of Haringey residents. Finding a 
plan for the Town Hall which restores the stunning historical features, opens up the 
building to the public, enables community use and gives the building a sustainable 
financial footing has been a challenging task because of the deteriorating condition of 
the building and significant community focus required for the building.  As a result of 
this, securing affordable housing on this Site has been difficult however there is an 
opportunity for the Council to commit its land receipt from the Site to fund affordable 
housing in this area.    
 

4.2 The Council‟s commitment to fund affordable housing in this area using its land 
receipt should be set out clearly in advance of Planning Committee meeting on 11th 
December 2017, therefore this recommendation is not going to Cabinet on 12th 
December and is instead coming forward through a Key Decision Report for Leader 
Signing.    
 
 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
5.1 The alternative option that have been considered for the Hornsey Town Hall project 

can be defined as follows: 

 Option A - Do nothing: The Council‟s land receipt for the Site goes into the 

Council‟s capital strategy to fund other priorities across the borough.    

 

Page 2



 
6. Background information 

 
HTH Procurement & Planning 

6.1 On 8 February 2017 the Council entered into a Development and Lease Agreement 
for the Site with FEC following a Competitive Dialogue Procedure and this 
Development Agreement is conditional on FEC obtaining planning permission for 
their scheme. Once the Development Agreement becomes unconditional the Council 
will grant a long lease of the Site for a sum of £3.5m.   
 

6.2 FEC has now made a planning application for the Site, which includes 11 affordable 
units that they will be funding in addition to their other investments at HTH, which 
include removing the town hall building from Historic England‟s „Heritage at Risk‟ 
register, substantially refurbishing the town hall and broadway annexe, launching a 
community focused arts centre in the building, guaranteeing continued public access 
to the town hall and improving the town hall square. 

 
6.3 The Cabinet approval of FEC as preferred bidder for the Site, made on 18th October 

2016, was subject to a call-in to Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC) and this 
meeting took place on 8th November 2016.  One of the recommendations made at 
OSC was for the Council‟s land receipt for the Site (£3.5m) be allocated to affordable 
housing, therefore the commitment being sought in this report would implement the 
recommendation made at OSC.  
 
Affordable Housing 

6.4 The Council is committed to ensuring that its residents have access to high quality 
homes that will support them in leading happy and fulfilling lives. There is clear 
evidence that the quality and affordability of your home affects your life chances, your 
health, your children‟s attainment at school and the quality of your family 
relationships. 

 
6.5 To achieve this ambition for high quality and affordable homes, there needs to be a 

step change in the number of homes being built in the borough to tackle the housing 
crisis head on and provide more homes.  

 
6.6 In seeking to build successful mixed communities, the Council is trying to tackle not 

just income inequality, but asset inequality. The Council is working hard to create 
genuinely affordable homes in the areas with the highest house prices and rents and 
will also do more to provide wrap-around support to those in housing crisis, providing 
not just homes but better life chances for families left behind by the market. 

 
6.7 This report seeks authority to spend the £3.5m land receipts that the Council will 

receive for the Site to fund affordable housing and it is expected at least an additional 
15 units can be achieved using this receipt.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 

7.1 The regeneration of the Hornsey Town Hall complex site is set within the context of 
the Council‟s Corporate Plan 2015-2018:  Building a Stronger Haringey Together.  

Page 3



Proposals for the redevelopment and future use of the Hornsey Town Hall site have 
been assessed in the context of the Corporate Plan to ensure such proposals 
address the Council‟s priorities.  

 
7.2 The Hornsey Town Hall project has the potential to play a key role in the council 

delivering its Corporate Plan priorities, particularly priority 4 (Drive growth and 
employment) and priority 5 (Create homes and communities).   

 
7.3 In relation to priority 5, the existing planning consent and the preferred bidder‟s 

proposals include provision for new residential development on the site which will 
create new desirable homes and via preservation of the heritage and by providing a 
long-term sustainable operation of the building this will ensure the proposals 
support the local area and community.   

 
7.4 The wider strategic context of Hornsey Town Hall being listed on Historic England‟s 

Buildings at Risk register also highlights a broader strategic context and driver for 
the project. 

 
 
8. Statutory Officers comments 

 
8.1 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 

8.1.1 The total capital receipt due to the Council for the long lease of HTH is £3.5m.  

 

8.1.2 The Council‟s Capital Programme for 2017/18 does not include this as income from 

the Capital receipt.  

 

8.1.3 The level of underspending within the capital programme is such that the inclusion 

of this item within the programme can be accommodated without breaching the 

budget and policy framework.  

8.2 Comments of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and legal 
implications 
 

8.2.1 The Council may spend the £3.5m on funding affordable housing as this capital 
receipt has not been allocated to fund other projects. The terms and conditions of 
the funding will need to be agreed and legal advice must be obtained prior to 
entering into any agreement.  

 
8.3 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

 
8.3.1 The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 (as 

amended) to have due regard to the need to: 
 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not.  

 
8.3.2 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, 

disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and 

Page 4



sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the 
duty. 

 
8.3.3   This decision commits £3.5 million to affordable housing. As identified in the setting of 

the Housing Strategy in 2016, all protected groups will benefit from more housing of 
different tenures. In particular, female lone parents, people with mental health issues 
or physical impairments and Black households are more likely to experience 
homelessness and therefore will benefit from additional affordable housing. 

 
8.3.4   Details on inequalities in access to housing based upon protected characteristics can 

be found here: 

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=118&MId=78
46&Ver=4 

 
 

8.4 Strategic Procurement Comments 
 

8.4.1 There are no procurement implications of the Council using its capital receipt from 

going into a long lease of the HTH site to fund more affordable housing.   

 
9. Use of Appendices 

None 
 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
 
- 

Page 5

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=118&MId=7846&Ver=4
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=118&MId=7846&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Hornsey Town Hall (HTH) - Agreement to Contribute the Council's Capital Receipt Towards Affordable Housing

